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I. HISTORY OF THE CASE

Two Huntsville Mill Girls Hobo to Chattanocoza

On March 24, 1931, two mill girls from Huntsville in Madison
County, northern Alabama, dressed up in overalls and hoboed their
way by freight train to Chattancoga, Tenn., about 97 miles away.
The older of the two, Victoria Price, wino said she was born in
Fayettesville, Tenn. and gave aer age as 21, planned the trip,
urgigg the younger one, Ruby Bates, 17 years old, to go with her.

All that is known so far of thisg trip is what Victoria Price
later told concerning it on the witness stand. o check on tae
truth of her story was made at the trial. According to this story,
the two girls arrived in Chattancoga late Tuesday, Harch 34, and
went to spend the nizht at the home of Mrs. Calive Brochie, who
lived, according to Victoria, several blocks off Market Street on
North Seventh. Victoria se 1d she d4id not know the number of the
house, but found the place by asklnc a bov on the street where
Mrs. Brochie lived. He pointed it out to the two girls, she said,
and all she could say was that it wasz the fourth house in the block.

" A thorough investigation o the neighborhood later Ly the
attorney for the defense failed to discowver either Mrs. Brochie or
the house she was said to live in.

The Return %o Hunitsville

As the story of Victoria Price goes, the two girls spent the
night with Mrs. Brochie, and set out the next morning with her to
look for work in the mills. Victoria was not clear in her trial
testimony as to the nuwmber and location of these mills where she
sald they tried to get work. Finding no jobs open, they decided
to return home to Huntsville. This was.around ten o'clock on the
morning of March 25. Boarding an oil tanker at first, they later
climbed over into a gondala, or open-topped freight car used for
carrying gravel. The car was partly filled with gravel. Here they
met seven white boys and began talking to them. Ruby declared in a
prlvate interview later than she did not speak to them dut stayed
in one end of the car by herself, while Victoria was talking, laugh-
ing and singing with the white DOYS in the other end of the car.
Victoria, bowever said that both she and Ruby had talked to the
Loys. —
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As the freight neared Stevenson, less than half the way to
Huntsville, Victoria testified that 13 Wegroes climbed 1into the gon-
dola in which the two girls were riding with the seven white youths.
walking over the top of a box car in front and jumping into the gou-
dola. Ruby said in a personal interview later that she did not
know how many coclored boys were in the crowd. She said she was too
frightened to count them. The Negroes gave the number of their
gang as 15. Victoria maintained emphatically that there were 12.

The Alleged Rape

According to Victoria's testimony, a Negro identified at the
trial as Charlie Wecms, came first waving a pistol, followed by the
others in the crowd. A mile or two past Stevenson, Victoria said
that the Negroes began fighting with the white boys, shouting "un-
load, you white sons-—of-titches" and forcing the white boys to jump
from the freight which was moving at a fast rate of speed. One of
the white boys, Orvil Gilley, who said he was afraid to jump for
fear he would be killed, was allowed by the Negross to remain. One
of the Negroes testified that he pulled Gilley back upon the car as
he was hanging over the edge Tfor fear he might fall between the cars
and be killed. The local papers reporting the trial, however,
claimed that he was forced to remain out of viciousness to witness
the alleged assault.

Victoria's story continued that while the freight was moving
rapidly between Stevenson and Paint Rock, a distance of approximate-
1y 38 miles, the Negroes having driven the seven walte boys from
the train, attacked the two girls. Victoria Price testified that
six raped her and six, Ruby Bates. Three of the ones who attacked
Ruby got off before the train stopped at Paint Rock, Victoria said.
She alleged that Charlie Weems was the leader and carried a pistol,
but that Clarence Norris was the first one to attack her. He was
followed by four others who took turns holding her, she claimed,
and then the leader, Weems, as the last one, was in the process of
raping her when the train stopped at Paint Rock and the Negroes
were captured by the posse who had been notified by telegraph from
Stevenson that the Negroes were on the train.

The white gang, after having been put off the train, had in-
formed the station master at Stevenson that the Negroes and the two
white girls were on the freight. The station agent telegraphed
ahead to Scottsboro, a station about 18 miles west of Stevenson, to
have the train stopped, but the freight had already passed there,
so Paint Rock, some 30 miles farther, was notified by telegraph.

Here nine of the Negroes were seized by an armed posse of
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officers and men. The other Negroes had left the train before it
arrived at Paint Rock and nothing more has been heard from them.

A report appeared in the press some days after the trial that two
Negroes were captured and an attempt made to identify them as mem-
bers of the crowd of nine Negroes in the Scottsboro case. Nothing
more was saild about it, so the attempt apparently fell through.

Plaugibility of the Charges Questioned

The International Labor Defense, which had representatives on
the scene at the time of the trial in Scottsboro, and whose attor-
ney, George Chamlee, of Chattanooga, later made investigations of
various phases of the case not brought out at the trial, claims
that when the two girls were taken Irom the train at Paint Rock,
they made no charges against the Negroes, until after they were
taken into custody; that their charges were made after they had
found out the spirit of the armed men that came to meet the train
and catch the Negroes, and that they were swept into making their
wholesale accusation againgt the Negrces merely by assenting to the
charges as presented by the men who seized the nine Negroes.

There is no way of proving this conclusively, but from the in-
terview I had with the two girls separately several weeks after the
trial, I would say that there is a strong possibility of truth in
this statement. The talk with Victoria Price, particularly, con-
vinced me that she was the type who welcomes attention and publicity
at any price. The price in this case meant little to her, as she
has no notions of shame connected with sexual intercourse in any
form and was quite unbothered in alleging that she went through
such an experience as the charges against the nine Negro lads imply.
Having been in direct contact from the cradle with the ingtitution
of prostitution as a side-line necessary to make the meager wages
of a mill worker pay the rent and buy the groceries, she has no
feeling of revulsion against promiscuous sexual intercourse such as
women of easier lives might suffer. It is very much a matter of the
ordinary routine of 1life to her, known in both Huntsville and Chat-
tanooga as a prostitute herself.

The younger girl, Ruby Bates, found herself from the beginning

pushed into the background by the more bubbling, pert personality

of Victoria. e was given little chance to do anything but follow
the lead of Victoria, so much quicker and garrulous. When I talked
with her alone she showed resentment against the position into which
Victoria had forced her, but did not secm to know what to do except
to keep silent and let Victoria do the talking. The general opinion
of the authorities at the trial was that Ruby was slow and stupid,
but that Victoria was a shrewd young woman whose testimony amounted
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to something because she zot the point at once cf what was needed to
hurry the trial through so that senteunce of death could be pronounced
quickly, From my tallkks with Judge Hawkins, who presided at the trial;
with Dr. Bridges who examined the girls, znd with other officials,

I believe any unbiased person would have to come to the conclusion
that this was the basis of their judament of the two girls as witnes-
ses.

After theilr arrest on ilarch 25, the nine negroes were taken to
Gadsden, Ala. to be held in jail there until the day of their trial.
On March 30, they made a quick trip to Scottsboro and back under
armed guard, for arraignment before a special session of the grand
jury. Judge A. E. Hawkins of the circuit court, set the date of trial
as April s, :

‘The Trial

Abbut 5.45 in the morning on April 6, a picked detachment of
the 167th infantry under ilaicr Joe Stearnes, made up of 118 members
of five national guard companies of Gadsden, Albertville and Gunters-
ville, Alahana, Brought the nine negroes from Gadsden and locked
"them in the county jJail at Scottsboro until the hour of their trial,
Peéple from surrounding counties and states began arrivinc by car and
train with the coming of dawn. Thousands had gathered b “he time
the trial opened at 8.30 o'clock. By ten o'clock it was ~stimated
that a crowd of 8,000 to 10,000 swarmed in the narrow village streets
of the little county seat of Scottsboro, packing the outside rim of
the Square around the Courthouse with a sollid mass of humanity. Arm~
ed soldiers formed a picket line to keep the mass of people out of
the Square, and no one was admitted into the Courthouse without a
special pérmit.

& Lvnching Spirit

Officials and residents of Scottsboro maintained that the crowd
was péaceful and showed no evidence of lynching spirit. 1Mrs. Ben
Davis, local reporter for the Chattanooga Times, wrote that the crowd
was "curious not furious" and was so pleased with her phrase that
she continued tc repeat it innumerable times when interviewed. Judge
Hawkins, Dr. Bridges, Hamlin Caldwell, the court stenographer;
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Sheriff Wann and many others were emphatic t
the crowd had poured into Scottsboro in the sni
circus and wanted to sco tho sher. bubt ver 1y
toward the defendants.

neir statements thet
rit of going to a
nout na1101ous intent
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Chance conversation with resi
tend to substantiate this view of
S
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lents of the tomn, however, did not
€ o ;1c1als. kind-faced, eldecr-~
road station, for instance, saild
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ly woman selling tWCketS at the rz
to me that if they re-triecd the I cs in Scottsboro, she hoped they
would leavc the soldisrs home next me. Vhen I asked why, shc re-
nlied that next time thew would finish off those “black ficnds" and
save the bothcer of a second trial. Then she told me a lurid story

of the mistrcatment suffecred by the two white gilirls at the hands of
those "horriblec black drutes', cne of whom had had her breast chevwed
cff v one of the Negroes,
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When I called to hor attention thot the doctor's tostimony for
the prosecution was to the effect that ncither of the girls showed
signs of any rcugh Lgndling on their bodies, 1t made no impression
upon her. Her faith in her at wociuv Suor" whicn had been told to her
"oy one who ought to know
en.

If, as the town authorities claimed, there was no lynching s»niritg,
or Stearnses, in charge cf the soldlers called to Scottsboro, cer-
nly did not go on thiz supposition., The town looked like an armed
p in war timc. Lrmed scldiers were on guard both inside ahd out-
e the ccurt nhus,, and hefore Court onened, the HMNoior gave orders
have persons in attendance ot the trial searched.

n Four 3Scporate Cases
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The chief witness for the State was the older of the two girls,
Victoria Pricec, whe +cld chc storvy of the trip to Chattanooga and
back frem Huntsv1]1 as given wrevicusly. She did it with such
gusto, snap and wise- cr;cxs that the courtroom was often in a roor
of laughter, Her flip reuo”ts to the attornev for the defense,
Steven Roddy, espccin 117 caused amuscrment. The sentiment of the
courtroom was with her, she know it and playcd up te it, as can Do
secn by the rccord of tho trial testimony.

The other girl, Ruby 3ntes, was fcund by the prosccution to be
a 'weal witness“, os I was told scveral timcs b officials proscnt
a2t t%p trial The white youth, Orvil Gilley, who romained on the
train with tno girls, also was considored stupid and slow-writted.
The Gilley boy came from Albertville, a small village o short dis-




Tance from Scottsboro. Jua e rerked to me abou®t him, say-

ing, ?Well, we all knov whinth Cemdiy Lo. I othor, for inssance
.. ..." and he broiic off 2os thou~h ib wers Loo obvious for vord:s vhot

I
siwe fomlly wes fecble-minded
replicd, "but.....well we

nis mother vas lilze. I zsked
n _ _
od.” e would comnit hirmself no forther,

or of low mentality ¢
Imow here they are not tuch g
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Frem 211 T ceuld gother lator, it scous thot the cpinion of span-
tators and officials at the trianl was that both Ruby Bates and Orvil
Gilley werce no good because they could not malic their testimony fit in
with the nesitive idenbtification of the llegrees and the account of
cvents as given by Victeria on the stand., Victoric teld mc lator thai

she warncd the »rosccutcr thoat hic had beticr take Rubw off the stand

as she was getting nmixcd up and would malke idonSificoticns and ansivors

o8

that did nct coincids with tliose sho, heorsclf, hnd made. The minutes

of the trial show certoinly that she was the only allcred ¢ye witness

of the group on the frcight that testificd ot greet length. Quoustion-
irg of Rubw Bates and Orvil Giller was 7 brief, and the other six

white boys were nct put on the stand ot all,

. Dr. M, E. vvcn, County Pzrrsicinn, and Dr. H, H. Eridgcs,
of Scottshorc, testified at al that the neodical exarmin~tion of
the girls mode shortls aftcr they were to'ten frov the trat:, snowcd

T
thero

o

sexuel Intcrcourze, but tha
sions handling; that they
cfficc fLruu,'but bo-

thot both the girls had hac
vere no lacerotions, tears o _
were not hysterical wher Yreou~ixt te Blu

came 80 lwtor Dr, Bridgcs said that VlC oria haod a smaLl scratch on

her neck, and a small briise or two, but nothing more scrious wos
found. Tho lawver for the dofensc, ir. Roddw, inculrced hegsitantly
and indircctly, in his cros=-cxomination of the doctor, if it were
possitle to tell the diffcrence betreen the spermatozee of o white
man and that of o colored male. Thc doctor answered that it was not
pcssible to distinguilish any diffcrence.

Othcr witncsses put on the stand by the State included Tuther
Morris, a farmcr living wecst of Stevenson, who tustified that he hod
secn the girls and the Negrocs on the freight train as it passed his
hay loft, which hc¢ sald was 30 yards away, “ard that ho "had scen a
plenty"; Lee Adams, of Stevenson, who saild he saw the
the white and colored boys on tlu tPQLP and Charles Te
who captured the Negroes at Paint Rock.

Mr, Steven Keddy, attorner for the defensce from Chattancoza, was
oy . 2




undoubtedly intimidated by the vposition in wlich ke found himself.

At the beginning of the trial he had asked not t- be recorded as the
lawyer in the case, begging the judge to lsave Milo iloody, Scotts-
boro attorney apnointed by the Judge as lawyer for the defense, on
record as counsel for the Negroes with himself avpearing purely in
advisory capacity as representing parents and friends of the boys in
Chattancoga, He made little more than half-hearted attempts to use
the formalities of the law to which he was entitled, after his motion
for a change of venue made at the beginning of the trial was over-
ruled, It might be said for him, of course, that taking the situa-
tion as 1t was, he felt it was hopeless for him to attempt to do any-
thing much, except make motlons for a new trial after the convictions,
which he did.

The first case went to the Jury Tuesday afternoon at 3 otclock,
and a verdict calling for the death penalty was returned in less than
two hours, The Judge had previously warned the courtroom that no
demonstration rmst be staged when the verdict was announced. In spite
of thisAthe room resounded with loud applause, and the mass of people

outside, when the news spread to them, checred wildly.

The next day, Vednescay, April 8, Haywood Patterson, of 910 Vest
19th Street, Chattanooga, 18 years old, was tried alone, as the second
case. In three hours the jury returned with the death penalty verdict.
It was met with silence in the courtroom.

In the third case, five of the remaining six boys were tried:
0lin Montgomery, of Monroe, Georgla, 17 years old, and nearly blind;
Andy Wright, of 710 est 22nd Street, Chattanooga, 18 years old;
Eugene Williams, No. 3 Clark Apts,, Chatbtanocoga, 15 years old; Williec
Rabeson, 992 Michigan Ave., Atlanta, Ga., 17 wears old; Ozie Powell,
107 Gilmore St., Atlanta, Ga., 16 years old.

e}
ing from a bad cass of venereal disease, which would have made it pain-
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ful, if not impossible for him to have cormitted the act of which he
was accused. The case went to the jury at 4 n.m. on Wednesday, April
8, and early Thursday morning, the jury aszaoin turned in the verdict
calling for the death pen.ltr received without demonstration in
court.

Judge Hawkins proceeded at once after the convictions returned
against the five llegroes in the third case, to pronounce the death
sentence on the eight who had been tried., He set the day of execution
for July 10, -the earllest date he was permitted to name under the law,
which requlres that 90 days be allowed for filing an appeal of a cose.

In three days' time, eight Negro boys all under 21, four of them
under 18 and two of them sixteen or under, were hurried through trials
which conformed only in outward appearance to the letter of the law,
Given no chance even to communicate with their parents and without
even as much as the sight of one friendly face, these eight boys,
little more than children, surrounded entirely by white hatred and
blind, venomous prejudice, were scntenced to be killed in the electric
chair at the earliest possible moment permitted by law., It 1s no ox-
aggeration certainly to call this a legal lynching,

The most shameful of the cases was left to the last. This was
the trial of fourteen-year-cld Roy Wright, of Chattancoga, a young
brother of anothcr of the defendants. Perhaps because of his youth-

fulneés, the white authorities who had him at their mercy, seémed to
be even‘more vicious in their attitude toward him than toward the
older defendants. They may unconsciously have Deen trying to cover
up a sense of uneasiness at what they were doing to a child. Several
of the authorities at the trial assured me later that he was really
the worst of the lot and deserved no lenlency on account of his youth.
But for the sake of outside public opinicn, the State decided to ask

for 1life imprisonment instead of the death pcnalty, in view of the

youth of the defendant.




At two o'clock on the aftcrnoon of Thursday, April 9, the jury
announced that they were dead-lcclked and could not agreoe on a verdict.
Eleven of therm stood for the death penalty and onc for life imprison-
ment. Judge Hawkins declared s mistrial, and the child was ordercd
back to jail to awalt anothcr crdcal at o later date. He is now in
the Birmingham jail. The other cight defendants were kept a short
tine alsc in Birmingham, and then romoved to Kilby prison, about four
milcs from Montgomery. I visited them there in their cells in the
death row on May 12, locked up two togcther in a ccll, frightencd
childrcen caught in a terrible trap without understanding what it is
21l about.

o e
[P

“Conflict botwoon Rival Orzanizations for Control of Casec

Two organizaticns have been in irrcconcilable conflict over the
handling of the casc since the conclusion of the trial. The Inter-
natlonal Labor Defensc, a Corrmunist-led organization with southern
headquartcrs in Chattanooga, rcad of thc arrcst of the Negrocs in the
press and sent represcntatives at once to Scottsboro to obsérve cvents
therc. The National Asscciation for thc Advancement of Colored Pceplce
say that they were informed of the casc through thce Interdenomination-
al Ministers Alllance, an organization of colored preachers in Chattan-
ooga, and clain crcdit for the presence at the trial of Steven Roddy,
Chattanooga attorney who reprcscnted himsclf in Scottsboro as scnt by
friends of thc defendants in Chattanooga, but refused to go on rccord
as attorney in thce casc, saying that he had not been employecd by ang
organization whatever. Hilo Moody, an ancicnt Scottsboro lawyer, cf
low type and rare practice, was appointed by the Judge to reprcscnt
the defensc. Later both Mr. Roddy and Mr. Moody recelved a small
fce from the National Association for the Advancement of Cclored Pcopnle,

After the convictions werc rushed through by the Scottsboro
authorities, thec International Labor Defense rctained their Southcrn
attorney, George Chamlecc, of Chattanooga, to start action for an ‘

appeal of the case., On May 6, when thc hearing on a new trial cane
up in Scottsboro, Mr., Chamlce was prescnt as attorney for the defend-
ants and apncared beforc the Judge on the hcaring which was postponed
until May 20.

Thé two organizations differ so fundamentelly on principles and
tactics, that any hope of a compromise in the legal control of the
case seems impcssible., The I,L.,D. believes in making appcals to the
masses of the workers, both black and white, on the issue of the case,
calling upon them to support the defense of the prisoners on a class
basis. By constant agitation through the Comrunist press and by mass
meetings, the Communists believe in using the case as propaganda to
cducate the working cass and to make clear to them what the Cormunist
Party stands for. :

The thing for which they have been criticized riost severcly by
opnonents of their political philosophy in their tactics on the Scotts=-
boro casc is the sending of telegrams to the Governor of Alabama, the
Judge at the trial, and other public officials, As printed in the
Scottsboro paper, the telegram from the I,L.D. sent to Judge




Hawkins during thc trial pead: "In names of masscs white and Negro
workers we pretest attermpt to legally lynch nine young Negro workers
Scottsboro on framcuv rape charges. We demand immediate change venue
new ftrial, dismissal defcense lawycrs oponly acdvocating quick exccu-
tion, Imminent danger lynchirg mob. Guardsmen openly advocate lynch-
ing. 'Te hold you resncnsible for lives thesc ninc workers,™

The MAACP 1s shecked and dismayed by these tactics, thinking
that it does great harm to the case as the members of the organization
believe it should be conducted. They favor working quietly with oo
little publicity as peossible, through liberal contacts in the South
wherever possible. Thev are most anxlous to try to avoid antagonizing
Southern prejudice.

By going to infterview the colored prisoners at Kilby in company
with a Negro minister, the Rev. Terrell, from Birmingham, Walter hitec,
of the NAACP succceded in getting four cof the defendants to sign their
crosses to statemcnts prepared by the NAACP saying they wished the
NAACP and not the I.L.D. to handlc their case. All of the defendants
are illiterate, unable even to sign their own names. He also visited
some of the parents with 2 warning to the effect that it mcant elecc-
trocution for thelir sons to hove anything to do with the I.L.D,

The NAACP alsc has arranged with Rodericlk Beddcw, a young Bir-
mingham attorney with some reputation in the Statec 2as a criminal
lawyer, to take the case for them on apncal.

Some days after Yalter White's visit to Kilby, the I.L,D. tcok
the parents of the boys, accompanied by their attorney, George Cham~
lee, to the prison to sce the boys, and claims to heve won all of
them over to allowing the I.L.D. attorney to handle their casc.

As the affair stands at present, thc struggle between the I.L.D.
and the NAACP secms to be in o decadlock, with the possiovility in tho
future that the case will be split betwecn the two organizations,
each retzining their own attorney, and endeavoring tc win over as
many of the defendants and the relatives tc their side as possible.




IT. ZECONOMIC AND SOCI.L BACKGROUND OTF THE SCOTTSBOR0O CASE

Why Do Pcople Do Such Things?

More than 2 mere knowledge of the cvents in the Scottsboro case
is nccessary for a real understanding of it. Like the Dreyfus affair,
the Mooncy-Billings and Sacco-Vanzettl cases, thc Scottsboro trial
has laid bare some of the inner workings of cur social structure.

How few human beings understand the real nature of forces movihg bc-
necath conventional surfaces is shown by the startled surpfise expres-
sed generally when our Scottsboro trials, our Sacco-Vanzctti cascs
bring out strange and terrible things produced by these underground
forces.

It is important for thosc who believe mankind can learn and is
learning to exert some control over sccial forces, to make a careful
study of such phenomena when it is thrown to the top b7 such eruptive
events. Nothing could offer a richer field for scientific observa-
tion and study of the effect of strong cconomic and racial prejudice
on the ordinarily mild and civilized impulses of modern men, than the
trial of the nine ycung Negroes in Alabama.

The question that comes first to the mind of a person who has
grown up away from the influcnce of the particular kind of prejudices,
the particular type of economic strugglc under which another grcup
has developed, is: How can people behave in such a manncr? In the
Scottsboro case, it is crystal clear to an unbiésed outsider that ﬁpe

persons concerned did cruel, unfair and unreasonablec things. An
inquiry intc their behavior might teke the form of threc questions:

1. The reccerd of the trial and personal interview later, show
that the two young women who brought thc charges of rapc agalinst the
ninc Negroes said things that fitted togethcr sc badly =os to indicate
that they were deliberately giving untruthful evidence.

Why with nothing avpparently to gain by 1iv, vere thesc two girls

so willing to say anything, regardless of its truth, that would bring
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death to nine boys?

2. The officials ~nd citizens or Scottsboro and neighboring com-

munities prosgent at the triel gave wunmistakable signs of violent hate,
of blind, unrcasoning antipnthy to those youné Negroes whom they had
never scen before, and who had donc nothing whatever to them. Even
the two girls they werc charsed with hamming were prescnt for all to

sce, in blooming health, and one of them at least, in the best of

1

spirits.
What made these officials and citizens then luat co for the:
blood of these helpless, frightened children?

3. Thc young Neagroes charged with the rape were undoub tedly
members of a rough, undisciplined geng; they did not know how to rcad
nor write, and they had no jobs. In outward appcarancc to the aver-
age white pcrson certainly, they lcoked like an unciviliied, uncouth
lot. One of them was ncarly blind; anothcr was diseascd with gonor-
rhca; a third was of low mentality.

Why had socicty so neglocted thesc boys that they were roaming
the land, discased, decstitutc, and ignorant?

Why the Two Girlc Madc the Charge?

, The first of thesc questicns can be answercd only by somc know-
lcdge of the conditions of 1life in the mill town of Huntsville, as
it affected the lives and development of the two young nill workers,
Victoria Price and Rub+w Bates,

Huntsville, the town scat of Madison County in northorn Alabamec,
has within its city limits, somec 12,000 inhabitants. Toking in the
four mill villages which surround it, the population is about 32,000,
Thore arc scven cotton mills in and around Huntsville, the largest
being the Lincoln mill made up of four units. It has its own mill
village and cmploys morc than a thousand workers. The Merrinac, the
Lowe, and thc Dallas, the next thrcc largest mills, also have mill
villages on the outskirts of Huntsvillc. Then thore arc thrce smal-
ler mills, the West Huntsvillc, and two cld-fashioncd plants under
the same management and owned by local capitalists -- the Helen knit-
ting mill and the ilarcaret spinning mill, It is in this last placc,
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the Margaret mill, that both Victoria Price and Ruby Bates worked be-
fore the trisl and afterward.

Wages were always low and hours long in all the Huntsville mills,
but in the HMargaret and Helen esnccially, working conditions are very
bad. The workers had to bear the brunt of the competition with the
modern mills, backed by outside capital and with outside conncctions
to help them out, while the Margarcet and Helen management was muddling
along in the old way. Respectable citizens of Huntsville said that
only the lowest type of mill workecr would takec a job in the Margarct
and Helen mills.

All the mills were running on short time during the period of
the Scottsboro case, and ‘had been for somc months before. lost of
them had cut down to two, threc, and four days a weeck., Thc Margaret
had 1ts workecrs on shifts employed only cvery othor week, from two
to four days a week.

Mill workers found it a dreary, hopcless enough struggle making
some sort of a living when times were good, sc when the slump hit
them, it did not take long for a largc group to fall quickly below
the self-sustaining line. Low standards of living werc forced down
still lower, and many —cro thrown upon the charity organizations. It
is from the charity workers cof Huntsville that one may get an appal=~
lingly truthful picture of what mill 1ife in Huntsville in time of
depression means to workers who arc do%godly trying to live on the
already meager and uncertain wages of "orosperity.”

High standards of morality, of health, of sanitation, do not

thrive under such conditions. It is a rare mill family that is not
touched in somc form by prostitution, discasc, prison, insanc asylum,
and drunkenness. “That's the kind of thing these mill workcrs are
mixed up with all the time”, complained one social service worker.
"Ity beginning to forget how decent people behave, I've been messing
around with vencrcal discase and starvation and uncmployment so long.'

Under the strain of life in Huntsville, the institution of the
family does not stand up very well. Charity workers grumble that too
many men are deserting their families., "If they get laid off, and
can't get another job they seem to think the best thing for them to
do is to leave town, because then the charities will have to take
care of their families"”, said onc.

There was no father in cvidence in either the families of Vic-
toria Price or Ruby Bates. ’

Husbands come and go in many cases, with marriage ceremenics or
without. A woman who takes in a male boarder to help out expenses 1s
unquestionably assumed to share her bed as well as her board with him,
The neighbors gossip about it, but with jealousy for her good luck in
goetting him, rather than fron disapproval of her conduct, The distinc--
tion betwecen wife and “"whore”, as the alternative is commonly known
in Huntsville, is not strictly drawn. & mill woman is quite likely
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to be both if she gets the dance, 28 1living 1s too precarious and
money too sScarcc to miss any kind of o chance to get 1t. Promiscuilty
means littlec where cconomic opnroagion is zreat

"These mill workers are as bad 2s the Niggers', said one social
service worker with 2 mixture of contemnt and understanding. "They
haven't any sense of morality at all., ¥hy, just lotec of these women
arc nothing but prostitutes. They just about have to be, I reckon,
for nobodv could live on thc wages they make, and that's the only
other way of making any money open to them.'

It should perhaps bc meontioned that thore are undoubtedly very
many mill families in Huntsville to whom these things just described
do not apply, but it is also truc that there is a large group of work-
ers toc whom the conditions do apply, and Ruby Bates and Victoria, with
whom this vart of the report is concerned, come from this group. It
might also be said here, that Huntsville is neot any worse than many
another mill town in the South. Ccnditions found here could be seen
in almost any toxtile center, and about somc places even worse things
could be truthfully said.

Ruby Bates and Her Fonily

As has been said, it is from the most cconomically oppresscd of
the mill workers of Huntsville that the two girls in the Scottsboro
cese come. Ruby Bates, the younger of the two, has a better reputa-
tion among the social workers of Huntsvillec than Victoria. They say
that she was quict and well-bchaved until she got into bad company
with Victoria Price.

Ruby is only scventeen. She 1s a large, fresh, good-looking girl,
shy, but a fluent cnough talker when encouraged. She spits snuff '
juice on the flcor continually whilc tallzing, holding onc finger over
half her mouth to kecp the strcam from missing alm. After each spurt
she carcfully wipes her mouth with her am and looks up agaln with
soft, melanchely eyes, as resigned and rnoving as thosc of 2 handsome
truck horse.

Rubv lives in a bare bus clean upncinted shack at 24 Dcnot Street,
in a Negrc section of sown, with hor rmotlicr, Mrs. Emma Bates. They
arc the only white family in the block. Cf the five children in thc
family, two are married and thrcc arc living at home. Mr. Babes 1s
senarated from his wife and lives in Tennessce, according to the re-
port of neighbors, who sar that he comes occasionally to sec his
children.

The housc in which the Batescs lived when I visited then on Hay

12, several weeks after the trial, hod boon vacated recently by a
colored familv, Thc social scrvice worker who accompanicd me on the
visit sniffod when she came in and saild to lirs. Bates: "Niggers

. 1ived here before you, I smell them. You can't got rid of that Migger
smell." Mrs. Bates looked apologetic and rmrmured that she had scrub-
™ ed the place down with soap and water. The nouse lookcd clean and

! ‘gfderly to mo. T smelled nothing, but then I have only a northern

ose,
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Out in front while we talked, the younger Bates children were
playing with the neighboring Negro youngsters. Hore was another one
of those ironic touchcs which 1lifc, oblividéus of men's ways, glves so
often. If the ninc youths on the freight car had been white, there
would have been no Scottshboro casc. The issuc at stake was that of
the inviolable separation of black men from white women. No chance
to remind Negroes in terrible fashion that white women are farther
away from thcm than the stars must be allowed to slip past. The chal-
lenge flung to the Negro race in the Scottsboro case was Ruby Bates,
and another like her. Ruby, a girl whom life had forced down to
equality with Negroes in violation of all the upholders of white su-
premacy were shouting. As a symbol of the Untouchable Whitc Woman,
the Whites held high -~ Ruby. The Ruby who lived among the Negrocs,
whose family mixed with them; a daughter of what respcctable Whites
call "the lowest of the low", that is a White whom economic scarcity
has forced across the great color barrier. All the things that made
the respcctable veople of Scottsboro insist that the Negro boys must
die, had meant nothing in thc life of Ruby Bates,

Yet herc was Ruby saying carnestly, as she sat in a Negro house,
surrounded by Negro familics, while the younger members of her fam-
ily played in the strect with Negro children, that the Scottsboro
authorities had promiscd her she could sec the execution of the "Nig-
gers" - the nine black lads who werc to be killed merely for being
Negroes. -

Ruby's mothcr, Mrs. Emma Bates, clean and neat in a cheap cotton
dress, talked with a mixture of embarrassment and off-handcd disre-
gard for her visitors' attitude toward her. She has worked in the
mills for many years. Shce was employed by thce Lincoln textile =111,
the largest one in Huntsville, some time before the trial, When I
saw her she was out of a job, but neighbors reported that she had a
"hoarder'! who was living with her, a man named Maynard. They also
gossiped that she frequently got drunk, and took men for money when-
ever shc got the chance.

Neither mother nor daughter showed signs of regarding the ex-
perience Ruby is alleged to have becn through as anything to be dc-
plored especially. They both discussed the casc quite natter-of-
factly, with no notion apvarently, that it had marrcd or blighted
Ruby's 1life at all, The publicity which the case has brought %o then,
however, has impressed thom greatly. Thg humbly accept the opinion
of respcctable white people; it never occurs to them, of course, tc
analyze the inconsistencices it makes with thelr own way of life.
Accustomed to scoing Negroes all around them on equal status with
thomselves for all practical purposes, and looking upon sexual inter-
course as part of the common and inescapable routine of life, they
nhave no basis in their own lives for any intense fecling on the sub-
ject of intimatc relations between whitcs and blacks. They have
just fallen in with "respectable’ opinion because that scoms to be
what is expectcd of them, and they want to do the proper thing. Therc
are go few times when they can.

The only strong feeling that Ruby showed about the case was not
directed against the Negroes. It was against Victoria Price that




Ruby expressed deep and bitter resentuent, For Victoria captured the
show for herself and pushed REuby into the background, causing people
at the trial to say that Victoria was a quick, clever girl, but Ruby
was slow and stupid. It was easier for Victoria to talk than to
breathe., Words came hard to Ruby. Victoria ldentified the six Negroes
she claimed attacked her with a cock=-sure, emphatic manner that much
impressed the jurors and the trial spectators. She caught on at once
to what was wanted of her -- identiflications without any confusing
hesitations to slow up the death sentences. Ruby, on the other hand,
was annoying from the start because she could not say which ones
attacked her, So Victoria with pert, condescending manner, passing
looks with the prosecuting officiels ' at such stupidity, told Ruby
which ones she must say attacked her, in order not to get mixed up
and ildentify some of those Victoria had previously sald were "her six
Niggers", as she put it.

Both Ruby and Victqeria told me this, in thelr own words, when I
interviewed them personally, Neither one had the slightest notion of
the seriousness of what they were saying. The only opinion they had
run across so far was that which said the "Niggers" must get the death
sentence at once or be lynched. Never having met any other attitude
on the Negro question, they both assumed that this was my attitude
also, and therefore spoke to me as they thought all respectable white
people speak.

Victoria Price and Her Mother

Victoria Price was born in Fayettesville, Tennessee. She has
been married but says she is separated from her husband. She left
him because he "lay around on me drunk with canned heat", she said.
She was krown at the trial as Mrs. Price, though this is her mothert's
name, not her husband's., Her age was variously reported in Scottsboro
as 19, 20, and 21, Her mother gave it as 24, and neighbors and social
workers said she was 27.

Viectoria lives in a little, unpainted shack at 313 Arms Street,
Huntsville, with her old, decrepid mother, Mrs. Ella Price, for whom
she insistently professes such flambovant devotion, that one immediato-
1y distrusts her sincerity. This impression 1s strengthened by littlc
side looks her mother gives her, Mrs, Price fell down the steps while
washing clothes, and injured her arm, which is now stiff and of little
use. Victoria says her mother is entirely dependent upon her for sup-
" port. )

Miss Price is a lively, talkative yocung woman, cocky in manner
and not bad to look at. She appears to be in very good health. The
attention which has come to her from the case has clearly delighted
her. She talks of it with zest, slipping in many vivid and earthy
phrases. Detalils spoken of in the local press as "unprintable” or
"unspeakable" she gives off-hand in her usual chatty manner, quilte
unabashed by their significance. Like Ruby, Victoria spits smuff with
wonderful aim,

Victoria and her mother, after some warm argument on the subject,
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agreed finally to the number of years that Victoria had worked in the
mills as being ten, IEight or thesc years were spent doing night work,
they said, on a twelve-hour shift, Victoria is a spinner, and used to
run from 12 to 14 sides, she said with pride. "Yeh, I used to make
sood money. I've made as high as $2.25 a day workin' the night shift
before haerd times come." Nov nobody is allowed to have more than 8
sides to run, and the average is 6, Victoria says, She gets 18 cents
a side now, where she used to get 22 cents. "I make on an average of
1.20 a day now, workin' two, sometimes three days a week. BEvery
other weck we are lald off altogether. You know nobody can't live

on wages lilre that.”

Although Victoria with a sly eye on me to see if I had heard of
her record and would scoff, assured me that in spite of her low wages
she never made a cent outside the walls of the mill, her reputation
as a prostitute is widely established in Huntsville, and according %o
investigation of the International ILabor Defense, also in Chattanocoga.
One of the social workers reported that Walter Sanders, chief deputy
sheriff in Huntsville, sald that he didn’t vother Victoria, although
he knew her trade, becausc she wns a "quict prostitute, and didn't go
rarin' around cuttin' up in public and walkin'! the streets solicitin',
but just took men cuiet-like."

Sheriff Giles, of Huntsville, said he had information that she
was running a speak-casy on the side with a married man named Teller,
who 1lived in the Tinoln mill village and had several small children,
but was now running arournd with Mrs. Price and leaving his wife. The
sheriff said bhe had been trying to catch them with the liquor on them,
put had not succceded sc far. He said that he had caught the Teller
man in her house, however, and had given both of them a warning.

Mrs, Russell, a neighbor of the Prices, claims that Victoria 1s
a "bad one" and has been in nc end of scrapcs with married men. She
was reported to be the cause of the separation of a Mr. and Mrs,
Tuther Bentrum, and was rumourcd to have rcceived the attentions of
a man nemed George Whitworth, until his wife threatened to kill her,
and Victoria hurriedly moved out of the neighborhood. One morning
after the Scottshoro trial, Mrs., Russell said she saw her lying drunk
out in the back vard with a man aslecep on her lap. MNrs. Russell 1is
also authority for the statenent that Victoria's mother was as notor-
ious for her promisculty in her day as Victoria is now.

These stories are typical of the sort that circulate continually
among the mill workers of the group from which both Ruby and Victoria
come. Whether true or exaggerated, they give some idea of the social
background of bcth the plaintiffs in the Scottsboro casec. Leaving
out of ccnsideration the matter of the conflicting and unteosted evi-
dence upon which the Negro boys were convicted, and agsuming what has
by no means been proved, that the Negroes are guilty of the worst
that has been charged against them, the qucsilon of whether a mon-
strous penalty has not been exacted for an offensc which the girls
themselves feel to be slight, can certainly be ralsed.
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Why the Bors "lere Hated

Scottsboro, the county seat of Jackson county in northern Alabama,
i1s a charming southern villagé with some 2,000 inhabitants situated in
the midst of pleasant, rolling hills., Neat, wcll-~tended farms lie all
around, the deep red of thelr soil making a striking contrast with thoe
rich green of the hills. The cottages of the town stand back on soft
lawns, shaded with handsome trees., A fecling of peace and leisure is
in the air. The pcople on the strcets have easy, kind faces, and
greet strangers as well as cach other cordially. In the Courthousc
Square’ in the conter of town, the village celebrities, such as the
mayér, the sheriff, the lawyers, loungc and chat democratically with
the town eccentrics and plain citizens.

Strolling around observing these things, it is hard to concclve
hat anything but kindly feclings and gontle manncrs toward all man-
kind can stir the hearts of the citizens of Scottsbore. It camc as
a sheck, therefore, to sec these pleasant faccs stiffen, these laugh-
ing mouths grow narrow and sinistor, thesc soft cycs become cold and
hard becausc the question was mentioned of a fair trial for ninc young
Negroes terrificd and quitc alonc. Suddenly thesc kindly-looking
mouths were saying the most frightful things. To sec people who or-
dinarily would be gentle and compassionatc at the thought of a child -~
2 white onc - in the least troublc, who would wincc at the sight of
a suffering dog - to sec thecse men and wonen transformecd by blind, un-
rcasoning antipathy so that thelr lips parted and their cyes glowed
with lust for the blood of black children, was a sight to make onc un-
touched by the spell of violent prejudice shrink.

The trial judge, A. E. Hawkins, a dignified, fine-loocking, gray-
hoired Southern gentleman, who was absclutely convinced in his own
mind that he had done everything to give the Negroes a failr trial,
gave himself away so obviously at cvery other scntence he uttered,
that anv person with mind uncloudcd by the prejudice which infected
hinm could have pointed it out. The othoer officials and citizens with
whom I discusscd the case also made it disconcertingly clear that they
regarded the trial of the Negrocs and the testimony given at it, not
as an honest attempt to get the truth, but as 2 game whore shrewd
tricks were to be used to bring about a rcsult already decided upon
in the minds of cvery one of them. They all wanted the Negroes killed
as quickly as possible in a way that would not bring disrcpute upon
the town. They thercforc preferred a sentcncce of dcath by a judge,  to
a sentencc of death by a mob, but they desired the same rcesult, and
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were impatient with anything that slowed up the convictlon and death
sentence which they all kncew was coming regardless of any testimony,

They said that all licgroes were brutes and had to be held down
by stern repressive measures or the murber of rapes on white women
would be larger than it is. Their point secmed to be that it was only
by ruthless oppression of the Negro that any whitc woman was able to
escape raping at Negro hands. Starting with this notion, it followed
that they could not conceive that two white girls found riding with a
crowd of negroes could possibly have escaped raping. A Negro will al-
ways, in thelr opinion, rape a white woman if he gets the chance.
These nine Negroes were riding alone with two white girls on a freight
car. Therefore there was no question that they raped them, or wanted
to rape them, or were present while othcr Negroes raped them - all of
which amounts to very rmch the same thing in southern eyes = and calls
for the immediate death of the Ncgroes regardless of these shades of
difference. As one southerner in Scottsboro put it, "We white people
just couldn't afford to let these Niggers gct off because of the effect
it would havc on other Niggers.”

In answering the guestion then, of why ordinarily kind, mild
people are arcuscd to such hecartless cruclty against boys who have
done them no harm, and if their case were fairly investigated quite
likely would be found to have harmed nobody c¢lse either, one is brought-
up against the ugly fact that these pleasant people of the South, the
Civil War notwithstanding, are still living on the enslavement of the
Negro race. And this brings one to a second ugly fact, that when thils
is s0, the subjugating racc cannot afford to have any regard for do-
cency, honesty, kindness, or fairness in their treatment of the black
race. These tralts are cxclusively for rclationships with their own
people. The thing that stands out above cverything else in their
minds is that thé black race must be kept down; as they put 1t, "The
Nigger must be kept in his place." Repression, terror, and torture
are the means that will do 1it,

Why Society Neglected the Boys

The third qucstion of why these nine young Negroes who have bcen
sentenced to death after a2 hasty legal ritual has been said over their
heads, have never bcen given a chance to be anything but the illiter-
atc, Jjobless young itinerants they are, lics tied up with the whole
problem of the denial of civil, social, and economic rights to the
Negro in Amcrica. It can be answered completely only by a study of the
discriminations practiced against the Negro in 211 phases of his lifc
- educational, residential, ceconomic segregation.

We pride ourselves in this country upon having a frec and compul-
sory educational system. Why then did these young Negroes, all undcr
age, not know how to read and write? Because the subjugating white
race is not concerned to see that black children go to school. It is
not to their interest to educate the Negro. They profit too much by
having a race under their feet who will do the dirtiest, the hardest
of their work. It is not to their interest to see tgattghe Ne%?g has

T d social rights as the white man. outhern whites
gggls%getég %lmg?row-bonc on%y one thing about the Negro, and ?hey.gay
1t over and over., Hundrecds of thousands of them have been saying ;11
for generations. They will continue to say it so long as anyone wi-
1isten., It is thelr only answer to the Negro problem, It is theilr
reply to the questions of the Scottsboro case - the Nigger must be
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ITI. OBVIOUS EVIDEITCILLS CIF IITZCANRIAGT OF JUSTICH

A .

fs basis for an appcal for a ncw trial, pcerhaps the most irmport-
ant cvidénce of a state of affeirs which could be said to have made

a fair, unbiascd trial feor thc Hegrocs in Scottsbero impossible, wos
the prescnce of some cight to ten thousand pcople who poured into

the 1ittle town to sec that the "Niggers got what was comin' to thom.”
The dcmonstrations madc by this mob or crowd, as the authoritics in-
sist it wasj; the prescnce of armed troops both inside and outsidc the
Courthouse; the scarches made by soldicrs of pcople who werc allowed
to enter the courtroom, ccritainly can nct be said to have Left no
imprcssion uporn the minds of the jurymen.

fnalyzing the trial, net so mmch for lcgal technicalitics, as
for opcn and flagrant violations of justice obvious to any open-nmind-
ed obscrver, ccrtain points may be scun tc stand out clearly.

1. Any kind of slip-shod cvidence against the Negroes was ac~
cepted with ne check made on it. The testimony of Victoria Price,
for cxample, was taken with no verificatiocon attempted. She claimed
that shec and Ruhv sncnt the night with ¢ Mrs. Brochic in Chnttanooga.
Mirmites of the trisl show that for sorwe rcason she wanted to conccal
who Mre. Brachic was and where she lived. It would have becn a simple
natter to have tricd to locatc this Mrs. Brochie and chock up Vie-
toria's story, yet this was not dene.

Ruby Bates was talicn off the stand auickly before she could give
her full version of the affair. Ruby ond Victorin said scparately
cfterward, as mentioncd before, thot this was becnusc her story and
identificaticns did not fit in with thosc Victoria had given.

No cxanmination was nadce of the plausibility of the story told by
the men who claimced ther saw part of the affair on the freight car
as it passed neor wherc they werce standing. It has becn since men-
tioned that onc of them clained to have seen things from o polnt so
far distant that he could not possibly have scen what he alleged at
the trial he witnesscd.

2. There was a significant omissicn of cvidence which might have
been made by those who played an impertont part in the casc. Why was
Orvil Gilley, the white boy whe woas not put off the train and is saild
to have witnessed the whole affair, not allowcd to tell his story on
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the stand? Judge Hawkins ansver to this question later was: "Weoll,
we all know what his family is. His mother for instance....." The

judge apparcntly thought this was pertincnt %o the case, though the
reputation of Miss Pricec was not.

Why were the other six white boys, who were responsible for the
charres aginst the ls~rncc, nct »nut on as witnesses? Was 1t becausce
sorething might have comc out to show that they were the oncs who had
sexual intercoursc with the girls? Tris certainly is a likely sup-
position in vicw of scveral things, and if the case against the Negrocs
were "fair" should have been looked into and not suppresscd.

3. Therc were no fricndly witnesscs at the trial for the Negro
prisoncrs, themsclves. If this was a "fair trial" why werc not even
the parcnts, or some rc¢lative where the parents were dead, brought to
the trial? Can the Scottsboro authorities say that our treatment of
minors in our courts is so bad that boys of 14, 15, 16, and 17 ycars
of age, if they were white, would be tricd and sentenced to death
without their parents cven being prescnt at the trial? Yet thesc
authdérities assert repeatedly and emphatically that thc Negroes would
have had the same kind of a trial if they had becn whitc.

4, Evidence as to the character and rcputation of Victoria Pricc
and Ruby Bates was rulcd out of order by the judge. Yect thore secns
to be some story current that Victoria Price was given tc taking
colored men as customers in Her trade as prostitute. An investigator
for the International Labor Defense in Chattanooga claims to have ob-
tained affidavits which state that she solicited among the colored
workers of a certain plant on pay day, and that she designated this
particular day as "Nigger day". The judge rulecd at the trial that
any evidence as to the previous reputation and conduct of Mise Pricec
was not pertinent. If nine young nen are to be killed on the tcsti-
mony mainly of one young woman, is it a mark of a "fair trial" to say
that nothing whatever about this young woman or the value of her word
has any bearing on the trial?®

5. As a final consideration of the fairness of the trial, a point
rnight be mentioncd which is very much in the realm of the ideal rathcr
than the practical and would bc considered by most southerns too ri-
diculous and "red” to put into words - there were no Negroes on the
jury which convicted the nine boys.

The trial, such as it was, is over. Intcrest and passion in the
casec have cooled. Examining the present status of the accusers and
the accused to sec what horrible things have been brought about by
this "crime", heralded in Alabama papers as the most heinous ever’
cormitted in thc State, or the whole country, as a matter of fact,
this 1s what onc finds:

The convicted "criminals”, eight torrificd, bewildercd young
Negroes lie miserably in their death cclls in Kilby prison, aWaiting
[execution.] '
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